
 

Oak Lodge Water District Office 
14496 SE River Road 
Oak Grove, OR 97267 

July 18, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. 
     

1. Call to Order and Flag Salute 
 

2. Call for Public Testimony 
 
Members of the public are welcome to testify for a maximum of three 
minutes on each agenda item. 
 

3. Resolution 2017-12 Approving Consumption Based Sanitary Sewer 
Service Billing Policy and Procedures 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
 June 2017 Financial Reports 

 Approval of Water June2017 Check Run 
 Approval of Sanitary June 2017 Check Run 

 June 20, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes 
 

5. Department Reports 
 Finance 
 Sanitary Operations 
 Water Operations 
 Technical Services 

 
6. Call for Public Comment 

7. Business from the Board 

 



8. Recess to Executive Session  

Convene Executive Session under ORS 192.660(2)(i) to conduct 
deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry 
on labor negotiations. 

9. Adjourn Executive Session – Board may take action if necessary 

10. Adjourn 



 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

    
Agenda Item:   Call for Public Testimony 
Item No.:    2 
Presenters:   N/A        

 
Background: 
 
Members of the public are invited to identify agenda items on which they would like 
to comment or provide testimony.  The Board may elect to limit the total time 
available for public comment or for any single speaker depending on meeting 
length. 
 
 
 



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

    
To:   Board of Directors 
From:   Jason Rice, Interim General Manager 
Agenda Item:   Consumption Based Billing Policy 
Item No.:  3 
Date:   July 18, 2017 
 

 

Action Requested 

Staff requests adoption the Attached consumption based billing policy for sanitary sewer 
via Resolution. 

Background 

Historically, Oak Lodge Sanitary District has used a consumption based billing policy 
that utilized three water meter readings in the winter to calculate a “Winter Average” that 
is applied to sanitary customers’ bills year-round. Using this method should find the 
precise quantity of water that makes its way into the sanitary system because irrigation 
is less likely to be used during winter months. Currently, those three readings reach as 
early as September 15th to as late as April 15th of the following year.  

Over the past year, Staff and the Board have been approached by various customers 
asking the District to review this policy due to its dates reaching into the fall and spring. 
These customers argued that in dry years, they might be watering well into September 
or early October.  

After reviewing, Staff agrees that the dates could be amended to shorten the “Winter 
Months” to be read from October 15th to March 15th by going to two readings. Two water 
usage readings should be enough to calculate an average unless one or two of those 
months contained a leak on the customers side. In this case, one reading could be 
used, but wouldn’t necessarily be in the benefit of the customer. If the leak continued 
throughout the “Winter Months”, the proposed policy would apply a District wide 
average as the customers individual average. 

 



 

Staff Recommendations 

It is recommended the Board that the updated policy be approved to reduce the “Winter 
Months to October 15th to March 15th. 
 
Suggested Motions 
 
I move to adopt Resolution 2017-12 adopting a consumption based billing policy for 
Sanitary Sewer. 
 
Attachment 
 

1. Proposed Consumption Based Billing Policy 
 
 



CONSUMPTION BASED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 
BILLING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to describe the policies and procedures the District will employ in 
calculating the bills for sanitary sewer service for all properties for which the District employs 
consumption based billing. 
 

Scope 
 
This policy applies to all District customers for which the District provides direct billing services.  
This policy may also apply to Out‐of‐District customers for which the District can conveniently 
access water consumption information. 
 

Policy and Procedures 
 

1.  Non‐irrigation season definition and calculation of consumption base. 
 

a.  Non‐irrigation season shall mean the period beginning October 15 and ending March 15. 
This non‐irrigation season period of five months is designed to capture the period when 
most potable water consumed within a structure is assumed to be discharged to the 
sanitary sewer system.  This period also allows for two District water usage readings for 
each of the two billing cycles. It is during this period when little, if any, potable water is 
used for the purposes of landscape irrigation or automobile washing and other outside 
activities for which the water may not be discharged to the sanitary sewer system. 

 

b.  Less than four months data availability.  In not all cases will four months of non‐
irrigation season water consumption data be available.  In these cases, a two‐month 
minimum sample period shall be established between the dates October 15 through 
March 15, or the water meter reading dates most closely associated with that period of 
time.  The two‐month minimum measure of water consumption during the non‐
irrigation season shall be used as the basis for calculating the consumption portion of 
the sanitary sewer bill.  A two‐month period of time during the non‐irrigation season 
shall be the minimum acceptable time period on which a sanitary sewer bill can be 
calculated based upon actual water consumption. 

 

c.  No data availability.  In cases where there is no applicable data available as a result of 
the use changing, the ownership changing, or other factors such as a structure newly 
connected to the system for which there is no historical water consumption, the District 
will bill the customer based upon a system‐wide average which shall be calculated from 
an equivalent dwelling unit basis.   

 

2.  Exceptions where non‐irrigation season water consumption data is not available, applicable, 
and/or usable for the purposes of calculating the appropriate proportion of system 
operation cost allocable to a user are described as follows:   

 



a.  Variations in usage.  In order for the District to consider any water consumption 
exception, and thus bill recalculation, the exception must be greater than 25% of the 
historical monthly usage on a one‐time event basis.   

 

b.  Water usage not discharged to the sanitary sewer system.  For the District to consider 
any request by a customer for credit against the amount of non‐irrigation season water 
consumption as measured through the potable water meter or meters to the property in 
question, the customer must do the following: 

 

1.  Customer must demonstrate to the District’s satisfaction that the metered water 
measured which is in dispute as to whether or not the water was discharged to the 
sanitary system was not discharged to the sanitary system; and 

 

2.  The customer must be able to accurately determine the non‐sanitary sewer service 
discharge; and 

 

3.  The District shall only deduct the provable non‐sanitary sewer service usage from 
the winter consumption average.   

 

c.  Recurring seasonal variations.  Some commercial and industrial operations result in 
seasonal variations to such a degree that the majority of their wastewater discharge 
occurs during periods of time other than the non‐irrigation season.  Cases where such 
seasonal variation exists may require evaluation and/or application of alternative water 
consumption measurement periods to determine appropriate data for calculation of a 
proportionate share of operational costs.  In cases where non‐irrigation season water 
consumption data is determined to be an inappropriate measure of sanitary sewer 
discharge (e.g., a cannery operation), the District, at its discretion, may select another 
base period on which to calculate the sanitary sewer charge. 

 

d.  New usage or change in ownership or usage of a structure mid‐year.   
(1) At any time the usage or ownership of property connected to the sanitary sewer 

system changes in a manner determined by the District to increase the flow, waste 
load, or change constituents of the discharge, the District shall have the right to 
recalculate the service charge to reflect a proportionate cost allocation. 

(2) The District may, at its discretion, recalculate the non‐irrigation average water 
consumption at the user’s request, when the new rate of usage is ongoing and 
constitutes at least a 25% variation from historical non‐irrigation season use. 

(3) In any recalculation of charges as contemplated in (1) and (2) above, the District may 
assign additional units or a reduction in units at any time a customer’s usage 
changes which increases or decreases the estimated volume of water, waste 
strength, or waste characteristics discharged to the sanitary sewer system. 

 

e.  Discontinuance of service.  A property owner whose property is connected to the 
sanitary sewer system may request discontinuance of sanitary sewer service for a 
variety of reasons.  In order for the District to process such a request for discontinuance 
of service and deduct the variable portion of the sanitary sewer service charge 
associated with consumption based billing, the following must occur: 
(1) All water meters serving the property must be out of service, be locked, and/or 

removed; and 
(2) No alternative water supply can be available to the property; and 



(3) No use or occupancy of the property shall occur. 
 

In all such cases where discontinuance is requested and the structure remains 
connected to the sanitary sewer system and service is available, the base charge (fixed 
component) will continue.  However, the variable component of the charge shall revert 
to zero for as long as the above conditions satisfied. 

 

f.  Disconnection of service.  In all cases where water meters have been locked out from 
the property in accordance with procedures, rules, and regulations of Oak Lodge Water 
Services, no sanitary sewer service will be billed where no discharge is possible to the 
sanitary sewer system. 

 
3.  Multi‐family, commercial, industrial and other multi‐dwelling unit equivalent services within 

Oak Lodge Water Services District, do not necessarily have a one‐to‐one correspondence 
between the water meter and an individual sanitary sewer user.  In such cases the following 
applies: 

 
  a.  Master meter owners are the responsible party for payment of the sanitary sewer bill.  

Master meter owners may request the District bill tenants.  The District may, at its 
discretion, accept or deny any request submitted by a master meter owner or property 
owner for which there are multiple tenants linked to a common water meter.  
Acceptance of any such billing distribution request shall be for master meter or property 
owner convenience only and shall not relieve the property owner from ultimate 
responsibility for payment of all monies owed.  In any case where master meter or 
property owner requests tenant billing, said request shall include the tenant billing 
address, number of assigned equivalent dwelling units and tenant water consumption 
information. 

 
  b.  It is the property owner’s responsibility to allocate the sanitary sewer service charges 

among the property owner’s tenants.  The property owner shall provide the District with 
an accounting of tenant equivalent dwelling unit assignment as well as water 
consumption distribution which shall total the values obtained from the master meter. 
 

c.  In cases where a property owner elects to install multiple meters at the same site to 
distribute the cost of sanitary sewer service charges, the owner shall provide that water 
meter use information to the District in a timely manner to enable calculation of sanitary 
sewer service charges. 

 
  d.  In cases where a single customer has multiple meters at the same site, the water 

consumption shall be calculated based upon the aggregated total of water consumed as 
measured by all of the multiple meters.  The District may elect at its option to bill either 
the property owner or the individual tenants as the District may determine appropriate, 
convenient, or reasonable.   

 
4.  Customer Claims.   

 
  In the event a customer disputes the water consumption data available to the District for 

any of a variety of reasons, the District shall provide a claims form which shall outline the 
District’s policy for addressing such claims and provide a format for the customer to respond 
to issues that are critical to adjudication of the claim.  All claims must be made within thirty 



(30) days of receipt of the water bill from the local water purveyor for which consumption 
data is being disputed.  Claims for water consumption data that does not vary more than 
25% from historical usage shall not be processed.   

 



OAK LODGE WATER SERVICES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-12 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A CONSUMPTION BASED BILLING POLICY FOR 
SANITARY SEWER. 

WHEREAS, the District desires to bill fair rates for sanitary sewer services; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to adopt the Consumption Based Billing Policy the 
District will employ in calculating the bills for sanitary sewer service for all properties for which 
the District employs consumption based billing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
OAK LODGE WATER SERVICES: 

Section 1.  The Board hereby adopts Attachment “A” to this Resolution that is the 
Consumption Based Billing Policy that will be used for calculating FY 2017-2018 billing rates. 

Section 2.  Staff shall maintain a copy of this Resolution in the District’s administrative 
offices for public reference. 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF JULY, 2017 

 
OAK LODGE WATER SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

                         

            By:_______________________________________ 

                Jim Martin, President 

   

            By:_______________________________________ 

                Jason Rice, Secretary 



CONSUMPTION BASED SANITARY SEWER SERVICE 
BILLING POLICY AND PROCEDURES 

 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this policy is to describe the policies and procedures the District will employ in 
calculating the bills for sanitary sewer service for all properties for which the District employs 
consumption based billing. 
 

Scope 
 
This policy applies to all District customers for which the District provides direct billing services.  
This policy may also apply to Out‐of‐District customers for which the District can conveniently 
access water consumption information. 
 

Policy and Procedures 
 

1.  Non‐irrigation season definition and calculation of consumption base. 
 

a.  Non‐irrigation season shall mean the period beginning October 15 and ending March 15. 
This non‐irrigation season period of five months is designed to capture the period when 
most potable water consumed within a structure is assumed to be discharged to the 
sanitary sewer system.  This period also allows for two District water usage readings for 
each of the two billing cycles. It is during this period when little, if any, potable water is 
used for the purposes of landscape irrigation or automobile washing and other outside 
activities for which the water may not be discharged to the sanitary sewer system. 

 

b.  Less than four months data availability.  In not all cases will four months of non‐
irrigation season water consumption data be available.  In these cases, a two‐month 
minimum sample period shall be established between the dates October 15 through 
March 15, or the water meter reading dates most closely associated with that period of 
time.  The two‐month minimum measure of water consumption during the non‐
irrigation season shall be used as the basis for calculating the consumption portion of 
the sanitary sewer bill.  A two‐month period of time during the non‐irrigation season 
shall be the minimum acceptable time period on which a sanitary sewer bill can be 
calculated based upon actual water consumption. 

 

c.  No data availability.  In cases where there is no applicable data available as a result of 
the use changing, the ownership changing, or other factors such as a structure newly 
connected to the system for which there is no historical water consumption, the District 
will bill the customer based upon a system‐wide average which shall be calculated from 
an equivalent dwelling unit basis.   

 

2.  Exceptions where non‐irrigation season water consumption data is not available, applicable, 
and/or usable for the purposes of calculating the appropriate proportion of system 
operation cost allocable to a user are described as follows:   

 



a.  Variations in usage.  In order for the District to consider any water consumption 
exception, and thus bill recalculation, the exception must be greater than 25% of the 
historical monthly usage on a one‐time event basis.   

 

b.  Water usage not discharged to the sanitary sewer system.  For the District to consider 
any request by a customer for credit against the amount of non‐irrigation season water 
consumption as measured through the potable water meter or meters to the property in 
question, the customer must do the following: 

 

1.  Customer must demonstrate to the District’s satisfaction that the metered water 
measured which is in dispute as to whether or not the water was discharged to the 
sanitary system was not discharged to the sanitary system; and 

 

2.  The customer must be able to accurately determine the non‐sanitary sewer service 
discharge; and 

 

3.  The District shall only deduct the provable non‐sanitary sewer service usage from 
the winter consumption average.   

 

c.  Recurring seasonal variations.  Some commercial and industrial operations result in 
seasonal variations to such a degree that the majority of their wastewater discharge 
occurs during periods of time other than the non‐irrigation season.  Cases where such 
seasonal variation exists may require evaluation and/or application of alternative water 
consumption measurement periods to determine appropriate data for calculation of a 
proportionate share of operational costs.  In cases where non‐irrigation season water 
consumption data is determined to be an inappropriate measure of sanitary sewer 
discharge (e.g., a cannery operation), the District, at its discretion, may select another 
base period on which to calculate the sanitary sewer charge. 

 

d.  New usage or change in ownership or usage of a structure mid‐year.   
(1) At any time the usage or ownership of property connected to the sanitary sewer 

system changes in a manner determined by the District to increase the flow, waste 
load, or change constituents of the discharge, the District shall have the right to 
recalculate the service charge to reflect a proportionate cost allocation. 

(2) The District may, at its discretion, recalculate the non‐irrigation average water 
consumption at the user’s request, when the new rate of usage is ongoing and 
constitutes at least a 25% variation from historical non‐irrigation season use. 

(3) In any recalculation of charges as contemplated in (1) and (2) above, the District may 
assign additional units or a reduction in units at any time a customer’s usage 
changes which increases or decreases the estimated volume of water, waste 
strength, or waste characteristics discharged to the sanitary sewer system. 

 

e.  Discontinuance of service.  A property owner whose property is connected to the 
sanitary sewer system may request discontinuance of sanitary sewer service for a 
variety of reasons.  In order for the District to process such a request for discontinuance 
of service and deduct the variable portion of the sanitary sewer service charge 
associated with consumption based billing, the following must occur: 
(1) All water meters serving the property must be out of service, be locked, and/or 

removed; and 
(2) No alternative water supply can be available to the property; and 



(3) No use or occupancy of the property shall occur. 
 

In all such cases where discontinuance is requested and the structure remains 
connected to the sanitary sewer system and service is available, the base charge (fixed 
component) will continue.  However, the variable component of the charge shall revert 
to zero for as long as the above conditions satisfied. 

 

f.  Disconnection of service.  In all cases where water meters have been locked out from 
the property in accordance with procedures, rules, and regulations of Oak Lodge Water 
Services, no sanitary sewer service will be billed where no discharge is possible to the 
sanitary sewer system. 

 
3.  Multi‐family, commercial, industrial and other multi‐dwelling unit equivalent services within 

Oak Lodge Water Services District, do not necessarily have a one‐to‐one correspondence 
between the water meter and an individual sanitary sewer user.  In such cases the following 
applies: 

 
  a.  Master meter owners are the responsible party for payment of the sanitary sewer bill.  

Master meter owners may request the District bill tenants.  The District may, at its 
discretion, accept or deny any request submitted by a master meter owner or property 
owner for which there are multiple tenants linked to a common water meter.  
Acceptance of any such billing distribution request shall be for master meter or property 
owner convenience only and shall not relieve the property owner from ultimate 
responsibility for payment of all monies owed.  In any case where master meter or 
property owner requests tenant billing, said request shall include the tenant billing 
address, number of assigned equivalent dwelling units and tenant water consumption 
information. 

 
  b.  It is the property owner’s responsibility to allocate the sanitary sewer service charges 

among the property owner’s tenants.  The property owner shall provide the District with 
an accounting of tenant equivalent dwelling unit assignment as well as water 
consumption distribution which shall total the values obtained from the master meter. 
 

c.  In cases where a property owner elects to install multiple meters at the same site to 
distribute the cost of sanitary sewer service charges, the owner shall provide that water 
meter use information to the District in a timely manner to enable calculation of sanitary 
sewer service charges. 

 
  d.  In cases where a single customer has multiple meters at the same site, the water 

consumption shall be calculated based upon the aggregated total of water consumed as 
measured by all of the multiple meters.  The District may elect at its option to bill either 
the property owner or the individual tenants as the District may determine appropriate, 
convenient, or reasonable.   

 
4.  Customer Claims.   

 
  In the event a customer disputes the water consumption data available to the District for 

any of a variety of reasons, the District shall provide a claims form which shall outline the 
District’s policy for addressing such claims and provide a format for the customer to respond 
to issues that are critical to adjudication of the claim.  All claims must be made within thirty 



(30) days of receipt of the water bill from the local water purveyor for which consumption 
data is being disputed.  Claims for water consumption data that does not vary more than 
25% from historical usage shall not be processed.   

 



 

 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
    
To:   Board of Directors     
From:   Jason Rice, Interim General Manager    
Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
Item No.:  4    
Date:   July 18, 2017    

 
 
Background: 
The Board of Directors has a standing item on the regular monthly meeting agenda called 
“Consent Agenda.”  This subset of the regular agenda provides for the Board to relegate 
routine business functions not requiring discussion to a consent agenda where all included 
items can be acted upon by a single act.   
 
The Consent Agenda includes: 
 

 June 2017 Financial Reports 
o Approval of Water June 2017 Check Run 
o Approval of Sanitary June 2017 Check Run 

 June 20, 2017 Board Meeting Minutes 

Board members may request to remove an item from the Consent Agenda to discuss 
separately. 
 
Options for Consideration: 
 

1. Approve the consent agenda as listed on the meeting agenda. 
 
2. Request one or more items listed on the consent agenda be pulled from the 

consent agenda for discussion. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the items listed under the Consent Agenda. 
 
Sample motion:  “I move to approve the consent agenda.” 
 

Approved ________________   Date______________________ 
 



  

 
 

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

 
To:    Board Directors 
From:   Kelly Stacey, Finance Director 
Agenda Item: June 2017 Financial Reports 
Item No.:  4a 
Date:   July 18, 2017 

 
 
Water Division 
 
Reports:  

 Monthly Overview 
 Retail Water Sales Fiscal Year Comparison (Graph) 
 Detailed Monthly Finance Report 
 Monthly Checks and Electronic Withdrawals 
 Bank Reconciliations - LGIP 
 Cash and Investments Account Balances 

 
 
Waste Water/Watershed Protection Division 
 
Reports: 

 Cash Disbursement Activity Summary  
 Invoice History  
 Bank Reconciliations – Wells Fargo Checking Account & LGIP 

 





























































































Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 1 of 9 
 

Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 
June 20, 2017 
 
Directors Present  
Lynn Fisher, Director 
Nancy Gibson, Director 
Susan Keil, Vice Chair  
Jim Martin, Chair  
Kevin Williams, Director 
 
Absent: Lynn Fisher, Director 
 
Staff Present 
Jason Rice, Acting General Manager 
Kelly Stacey, Finance Director 
Rich Ludlow, Interim Operations Manager 
Todd Knapp, Field Operations Superintendent 
Clark Balfour, District Attorney 
 
Visitors 
Robb Van Cleave, staff of Multi-Government Personnel Institute 
Randy Leniger, OLWS Staff 
Bev Carlson, Local Resident 
Jason Ellerby, Local Resident 
Andrea Pennick, Gresham Resident 
John Self: Denver, Colorado Resident  
Eric Hofeld, Sunrise Water District Representative 
Thelma Haggenmiller, Local Resident  
Brad Lyon, OLWS Staff 
Pat McDonald, Local Resident 
Dave Phelps, Local Resident 

 
Regular Meeting 

 
 

(1) Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chair Martin called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and led the pledge of 
allegiance. 

 
 
(2) Executive Session 
 

After the pledge, the Board of Directors recessed to Executive Session under ORS 
192.660(2)(a) to consider the employment of a public officer, employee, staff 
member or individual agent. 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 2 of 9 
 

(3) Adjourn Executive Session – no action taken. 
 
(4) Call for Public Testimony – there was none. 

 
(5) Sanitary Sewer Bond Refunding Conversation 

 
Acting General Manager Jason Rice introduced two Wells Fargo Staff – Andrea 
Pennick and John Self concerning the possibility of refinancing the Sanitary Sewer 
General Obligation Bonds. John Self presented three options for the District: a 7-
year initial term with a 10-year amortization a 10-year initial term with a 10-year 
amortization, and a 10-year initial term with a 13-year amortization. The base 
interest rates range between 2.02% and 2.18% and interest on longer term loans 
have not been effected by the Federal Interest Rate changes. With the current 2020 
loan call date, this refunding would allow for prepayment. Director Keil asked about 
how the rates presented would affect ratepayers. Finance Director Kelly Stacey 
outlined the cost savings in board materials, with true cost savings not coming in 
until the last 3 years of the loan. In option one, ratepayers will pay about $10 per 
bill more in order to save net $1,087,730.00. Option two, ratepayers would pay and 
increase of about $4 per bill and would save $894,525.00. In option 3, there would 
be no rate increase needed, and a $750,000.00 net savings. Question about initial 
terms – interest rates are reset after the initial term rates; loan is prepayable, District 
can also reissue a new bond to taxpayers if needed, and this is a one-time 
“advanced refunding”. Questions from Eric Hofeld, Sunrise Water District, about 
terms, interest rates and bond types.  

 
Vice Chair Keil moved that the board requests for staff to review the 10/13 
General Obligation “Option 3”, evaluate it and come back to the board with 
comments and recommendations. Board communicated that outside 
financial expertise could be brought in to consult if needed. Director Gibson 
seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0. 

 
Board requested the possibility of an extension on the 30-day Wells Fargo offer, 
and staff will bring back comments to the Board sooner if possible. 

 
(6) Recess to Executive Session 

 
Convene Executive Session under ORS 192.660(2)(d) to conduct 
deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on 
labor negotiation. 

(7) Adjourn Executive Session – Board may act if necessary, see Item #8. 
 
(8) Resolution 2017-09 Approving Interim General Manager to Sign Collective 

Bargaining Agreement for Ratification 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 3 of 9 
 

 
Staff recommends that OLWS sign the collective bargaining agreement as was 
negotiated for the next labor contract term of 3 years. Staff report outlined details. 
 
Director Gibson moved to approve Resolution 2017-09 approving Interim 
General Manager Jason Rice to sign the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
with AFSCME Local 350-10. Vice Chair Keil seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0. 
 
 

(9) Resolutions 2017-10 Adoption of FY 2018 Budget and Appropriations and 
2017-11 Adoption of FY 2018 Fee Schedule 
 
Finance Director shared FY 2018 Budget, Chair Jim Martin called for a Public 
Hearing in review of the budget as presented.  There were no comments 
from the Public. Reconvened Regular Board Meeting. Finance Director Kelly 
Stacey recommended Adoption of FY 2017-2018 Budget and Appropriations and 
2017-11 Adopting the FY 2017-2018 Fee Schedule.  
 
Director Williams moved to approve Resolution 2017-10 Adopting FY 2017-
2018 Budget in the amount of $29,544,461. Director Gibson seconded the 
motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0. 
 
Director Gibson moved to adopt the amounts as stated in Resolution 2017-
10 for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017 and appropriate the funds as 
outlined. Director Keil seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0. 
 
Vice Chair Keil moved to adopt Resolution 2017-11 adopting rates, fees and 
other charges for FY 2017-2018 with the elimination of the Fats, Oils, Grease 
Program’s “Application Fee and Non-Compliance Fee” as shown on page 2 
of the Resolution 2017-11. Director Gibson seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0.  
 
Vice Chair Keil asked about the Fats, Oils, and Grease program’s annual fee/fine 
– Interim General Manager Jason Rice had asked OLWS staff about this item, and 
found that the District has never charged for this item. He recommended that the 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 4 of 9 
 

District review this item. Items #1 Application Fee and #2 Non-Compliance Fee in 
the FOG Program will be deleted from the Fee Schedule until that program can be 
revisited for next year.  If there is an event that needs cost recovery, staff will use 
the Wastewater Collection System Line Maintenance Fees. 

 
(10) Resolution 2017-12 Approving Certification of outstanding Sanitary 

Customers 
 

Interim General Manager Jason Rice presented Resolution 2017-12, which lists 
the accounts for Certification of outstanding Sanitary Customers. In the future 
code, the District will shut off water for OLWS customers outstanding more than 
$175, or just over one bills worth of service (4 months of service). Questions 
included landlord/tenant relationship around bills, including larger apartment 
buildings. Attorney Balfour recommended contacting him before having to 
distribute notices to tenants because of the Residential Landlord/Tenant 
Notification Act.  
 
Public comment from Thelma Hagenmiller that this information needs to be shared 
out to the public, and that ratepayers might not have voted for the consolidation 
had they known their water could be shut off if their sewer bill wasn’t paid. Staff 
responded that a letter will be sent to all ratepayers informing them of the 
changes. Public comment stating that elderly customers will be challenged 
because they are on fixed incomes and don’t have the money to pay charges for 
sewer portion of the OLWS bill. Finance Director Kelly Stacey shared about the 
Low-Income Utility Rate Relief Program for water and sewer bills.  
 
Board requested that staff presents an approach for moving forward and 
addressing this issue moving forward. Director Williams asked about property tax 
“coverage” for elderly, which basically defers the property taxes like a “reverse 
mortgage” in partnership with Clackamas County and the State of Oregon. Chair 
Martin recommended they get into the low-income program. Vice Chair Keil 
recommended that the District begin using a single application for low-income 
applicants. 
 
Public comment about requirement that Social Security forms to be submitted as 
part of the low-income program and that it takes longer than that to get the forms 
they need to apply. Staff responded that applicants can come in any time of year 
and that there is more flexibility in the program. 
 
Director Gibson moved to adopt Resolution 2017-12 directing staff to certify 
to Clackamas County Assessor those accounts remaining delinquent as of 
June 15, 2017 in accordance with the provided confidential list. Vice Chair 
Keil seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 5 of 9 
 

Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0.  
 
 

(11) Consent Agenda 
 
Director Gibson moved to approve the consent agenda. Director Williams 
seconded the motion. 
Ayes:  Gibson, Keil, Martin, Williams 
Nays:  None 
The motion carried 4-0.  
 
Finance Director Kelly Stacey shared with the board that Accountant Jeff Voreis 
will be reconciling the bank statements moving forward, but will not have signing 
authority, so the District will not have to include bank statements in Board packets. 
 

(12) Department Reports 
 
Finance Report: Financial Director Kelly Stacey shared timeline around general 
ledger implementation and forward movement on the Accela implementation. On 
track for an October payroll combination and a January roll out for combined 
billing. Goal for double water bill on the back to back bill cycle. They will 
implement parallel processes to input data.  
 
Sanitary Operations Report: Interim Operations Manager Rich Ludlow shared 
that their focus is on T.V. cleaning, so that lowered the sewer cleaning numbers. 
Director Williams shared positive comments around the job completed at the 
manholes on his property. 
 
Water Operations Report: Operations Manager Todd Knapp shared that the fiber 
line is on hold temporarily because of a delay on approval of the permit 
provisioning. Jeff and Rebecca will them move over to the former Water Building. 
He provided information on some challenges on the reservoir project and will 
share any additional costs with the project if they are over 25% over original costs 
of the project.  
 
Technical Services Report: Interim General Manager Jason Rice had nothing to 
add to this report. 
 
General Manager Update: Interim General Manager Jason Rice updated the 
board that the Employee Handbook is in final stages of review for an 
August/September public/Board review. The District is also well into the Rules and 
Regulations document for an August/September public/Board review. District is 
mostly on schedule for consolidation activities, except for the building remodel. He 
updated the Board about the Operations Superintendent application process, and 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 6 of 9 
 

that the WET job bank added 5-6 more applicants to the pool. There is a chance 
that they will extend the application date again. 
 

(13) Public Comment 

Thelma Haggenmiller directed a question to District Attorney Balfour about what 
will happen to customers who are just under sewer service and not water 
customers. Staff response that the number of those customers is very limited, and 
that they will be moving to a collections process for overdue customers, and away 
from certification all together. 

(14) Business from the Board 

Director Williams Jennings Lodge CPO meeting focused on Scott Fisher and 
about Happy Valley moving away from the NCPRD. Jennings Lodge residents 
requested additional parks from the district, and that should be addressed in part 
through the new Capital Improvement Program. He shared information about the 
Evangelical Retreat Center and that required permitting through the Army Corps of 
Engineers will likely require some land set aside for ecological use and that the 
project is in review. 

Director Gibson reported that the Regional Water Providers Consortium executive 
team will be working on leading the charge around messaging for water 
conservation, resiliency and planning for resiliency. They celebrated their 20-year 
anniversary with a party and she forwarded a video to Acting General Manager 
Jason Rice to share out with the public on the commemoration. New chair for 
Consortium is Russ Axelrod from City of West Linn. She reported that in C4 
they’ve entered transportation project ranking and planning. Although there is 
much more needed to cover the projects that are outlined, the committee has 25 
million for designation to projects, so they are in a ranking process. One highlight 
is that the I-205 in Clackamas County is slated for widening up from 2 lanes. 
Another overarching project that C4 is working on is projecting jobs  income  
needed housing for the county to line up housing that costs what people working 
in the county earn. 

President Martin reported on the North Clackamas County Water Commission IGA 
update: name change for OLWS has been completed; rate structure is being 
addressed – Gladstone is concerned that they will have the water they need and 
will have a new commissioner put in place. They are continuing to make progress. 

Director Keil added that the Chamber of Commerce Public Policy meeting 
included a presentation from WES’ Greg Eyerly on the consolidation of treatment 
plants and processing of biosolids. Councilor Linda Neese from Gladstone asked 
if they were paying too much for their treatment costs, and received response from 
WES that their Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) was costing them extra. Gladstone said 
that they are making repairs. Director Gibson mentioned that this is true for their 



Oak Lodge Water Services District 
Minutes of the June 20, 2017 Board Meeting 
Page 7 of 9 
 

water leakage as well, up to 30% water loss. Vice Chair recommended that OLWS 
make a presentation to the Chamber of Commerce as well. 

Director Fisher was absent, so did not report.  

No other business. 

(15) Adjourn 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:58 p.m. 

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

 

Jason Rice, Acting General Manager Jim Martin, Chair



 

Oak Lodge Water Services District 

General Manager Recruitment Timeline 

 
April 28:              Finalize Services Agreement 

Schedule 1st Meeting w/ Selection Committee   
 
May 1 – 16:     Discuss Position Expectations & Competency Criteria   
      Review Job Description, and Update as Needed   
      Establish Hiring Compensation & Benefit Package   
      Develop Recruitment Strategy   
      Determine Recruitment Period   
      Finalize List of Recruitment Outlets   
 
May 16 – 26:     Develop & Finalize Recruitment Materials   
       Develop Supplemental Questionnaire   
 
May 29‐June 2:    Submit Recruitment Ads ‐ Recruitment Opens   
 
June 2 ‐ July 3:   Recruitment Period   
June 1 ‐ June 9:  Develop Screening Criteria & Finalize Screening Process   
      Develop Interview Questions & Finalize Interview Process   
 
June 13:     Adopt Screening Criteria, Finalize Screening Process  
      Adopt Interview Questions, Finalize Interview Process   
 
July 3–7:    First Review of Applications by LGPI   
 
July 10‐21:    Review of Applications by OLWSD   
 
July 24:     Finalize Top Candidate Listing ‐ Invite Candidates to Interview 

Send Email to Candidates not Selected for Interview   
 
August 15:    Interview Panel Briefing   
      Conduct Applicant Interviews  
      Debrief Following Interviews ‐ Select Preferred Candidate   
 
August 21‐25:    Negotiate Salary & Hiring Timeline ‐ Present Conditional Offer   
 
August 28 ‐      
September 8:    Conduct Pre‐Employment Background Check 
 
September 12:   Finalize Candidate Recruitment   

Send Regret Letters to Applicants not Selected   



 

Oak Lodge Water Services District 

General Manager Recruitment Posting Sites:  

 

Oak Lodge Website 

LGPI Website (no cost) 

Regional Water Providers Consortium Members – List Serve 

Oregon Water Utility Council – List Serve 

OCCMA – List Serve 

American Water Works Association – PNW section: ($90/90 days) 

Oregon Association of Water Utilities (no cost) 

Special Districts Association of Oregon:  

LOC Website ($20/month) 

American Public Works Association – Oregon Chapter 



 

Job Title:  General Manager, Oak Lodge Water Services 
Department:  Administration  
FLSA:   Exempt 
Reports To:  Board of Directors 
 
 
GENERAL PURPOSE: 
Serves as General Manager of the District, under policy direction from the Board of Directors; 
plans, manages, and directs the operations of the District to ensure compliance with State 
statues, District goals, policies, and applicable governmental regulations to support high quality, 
cost effective, and dependable potable water service, wastewater collection and treatment, and 
surface water management; implements Board of Directors’ policies and procedures, and 
performs related duties as required. 
 
Responsibilities and assignments are broad in scope and require independent judgment on 
issues that are complex, interpretive, and evaluative in nature. The work of this position involves 
significant accountability and decision-making responsibilities. 
 
 
ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
GENERAL 
 
 In execution of all duties and responsibilities, works collaboratively with subordinate 

managers and staff. 
 Develops, implements, and monitors work programs, plans, processes, systems, and 

procedures to achieve District mission, goals, and performance measures consistent with 
the Oak Lodge community’s expectations for quality and service. 

 
PERSONNEL 
 
To carry out the District’s mission, objectives, and service expectations, develops and retains 
highly competent, service-oriented staff: 
 
 Exercises full authority to employ and discharge all employees; prescribes the duties and 

employees; provides final approval of personnel actions including hiring of new employees, 
formal disciplinary actions and separations in accordance with human resources policies 
and labor contract agreements and state and federal laws; establishes and adjusts 
compensation of employees with the annual salary schedule approved by the Board of 
OLWS. 

 Evaluates the performance of managers and staff; establishes performance requirements 
and personal development targets; regularly monitors performance and provides training, 
coaching, and day-to-day management practices for performance improvement and 
development. 

 Provides leadership and participates in programs and activities that promote workplace 
diversity and a positive employee relations environment. 

 
 Establishes and maintains an effective system of open communication throughout the 

organization; maintains visibility and direct contact with employees to ensure the 
development of a work environment that supports open communication, collaboration, 
accountability, and high productivity among employees. 

 
  



 

 



  

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

 
To:    Oak Lodge Water Services Board of Directors 
From:    Kelly Stacey, Finance Director 
Agenda Item:  Monthly Finance Report 
Item No.:  5a 
Subject:  June 2017 Financial/Admin Update 
 
Below is an update of various efforts of the Finance/Administration department. 
 
Accela implementation: 
Accela implementation is well underway.  We have provided our chart of accounts and vendors in 
preparation of our first go live session.  July 18-20, we will be doing our business process study for 
Utility Billing so we can begin working on that portion of the conversion while Accela works in 
the background on other areas. 
 
Office Clean-up: 
Our temporary person, Jeanice, was offered a permanent position so Friday July 7 was her last day.  
She was an excellent worker and completed most of the tasks we wanted done.  The backroom at 
the water building is mostly empty and we have shredded all of our documents that were set for 
disposal.  We were not able to send her to the sanitary office for a few days so we may need to 
consider another temp.  We will see how things transpire over the next few weeks before making 
that decision.   
 
Office Staff Changes and Training:   
We have posted the position of Human Resource Manager to fill the position that Tara will be 
vacating in August.  In the meantime, Jeff will be filling in the payroll duties and Elaine is 
speeding up her training to take over utility billing.  We are hoping to have Rebecca and Jeff in the 
Water by the first of August.  This will help in the distribution of duties and provide extra phone 
coverage during the many conversion dates we have coming in August.   
 
Bond Refinance:   
I am continuing the investigation of the bond refinance.  We are seeking to get some clarity on our 
debt distribution plan and working through the necessary steps to move forward.  
 
Vacation:  
I will be on vacation from July 21 through Aug 4.  I have plans in place to keep things moving 
forward during this time.  I will have some access to my email and will be checking it 
occasionally.   
 



   
 

 

 
Sanitary Staff Report 

 
 
To:   Board of Directors     
From:   Rich Ludlow, Interim Operations Manager    
Agenda Item: Sanitary Operations Report 
Item No.:  5b  
Date:   July 18, 2017    

Background: 
The Board has requested updates at the Regular Meetings of the Board on the status of 
the District’s Operations. 

Operations Administration 

Sanitary Operations brought in temp help for seasonal work.  Ashley Reeder is a 
graduate of the Clackamas Community College Water and Environmental program.  
She is performing odd jobs and plant clean up duties as well as assisting with utility 
locates and other entry level type tasks.  Reviewing and commenting on Employee 
Handbook and District Rules updates. 

Water Reclamation Facility Operations for June 2017 
 
All NPDES permit and safety compliance requirements were met for the month of June.  
 
The treatment plant continues to perform well with excellent effluent quality.  Plant 
process continues to move into summer mode with nitrification/denitrification for 
ammonia control in warmer temperatures. Plant staff are lowering the solids inventories 
to manage the increased rate of biological activity in warmer weather.  Inventory 
reduction is accomplished by increased processing and hauling of biosolids.   
 
Samples results indicate Oak Lodge is meeting Class ‘A’ biosolids which allows 
increased flexibility in how and where we land apply.  The Biosolids Management Plan 
will need to be updated to accommodate beneficial re-use of this high-quality product 
which will require additional testing protocols.  Our Operations Specialist Monica Stone 
is spearheading this effort. 
 
Treatment plant effluent quality continues to be pristine with sample results consistently 
meeting the more stringent requirements we anticipate arriving with the permit renewal.  
Plant operators are doing an excellent job of optimizing the facility performance in a 
conventional activated sludge configuration. 
 
 
 



Operations Report 
July 5th, 2017 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
Field Operations Monthly Report for June 2017 
 
Staff Availability: 
Working 
Hours in 
Month 

Leave/Training/Paid 
Breaks  

Actual Attendance/Available Hours (working 
hours minus leave/training) 

704 165 539
 
 
Accomplishments: Goal Actual % Goal Met Field 

Crew 
Hours

Sewer Cleaning (linear feet)   9450 2445 26% 47 
TV Inspections (linear feet)   9450 12,753 135% 108.25
Grease Line Cleaning 11,061 100% 17 
Sewer Line/Manhole 
Repair/Inspect/Install

   
23.25 

Utility Locates  97 
SWM Work by Line Maintenance 
Techs 

   
14.25 

Fleet Support Work 18.25
Sewer Overflow Response 0 
Plant/PS Equipment Work Orders 2.25
Customer Service/Investigations 8.75
Program Support 30.5
   Total Work 

Order Hours 
366.5 

   Staff Time 
Utilized on 
Work Orders 

68% 

 
*TV Inspections are short sections that require increased mobilization  
 
Meeting/training/other details:    Total staff hours 
 
Staff meetings       6 hours 
CPR/First Aid       26 hours 
Lucity RUG        8 hours 
DOT Physical       3 hours 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Operations Report 
July 5th, 2017 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
WRF Maintenance Monthly Report for June 2017 
 
Staff Availability: 
Working 
Hours in 
Month 

Leave/Training/Paid 
Breaks 

Actual Attendance/Available Hours (working 
hours minus leave/breaks) 

346 47 299
 
 Count Hours 
Number of Preventive Work Orders 
Completed 

57 61.3 

Number of Repair Work Orders Completed 22 47.45 

Note: Counts differ between Complete Work Orders and Time Charged because not 
all Work Orders are completed during the month.
Time Charged to Preventive Works Order 
Count/Time 

40 72.45 

Time Charged to Repair Work Orders 
Count/Time 

46 87.25 

 Hours charged to Work 
Orders in month  

159.70 

 Staff Time Utilized on 
all Work Orders

53% 

 Utilization Toward PM 
Work Orders

24% 

 
Meeting/training/other details:    Total staff hours 
 
Staff Meetings:      4 hours 
Lucity RUG       8 hours 
CPR/First Aid      13 hours 
  
Maintenance work highlights for the month: 

 Replaced battery packs in all UPS units 
 Repaired failed emergency light at PS #3 
 Rebuilt Digested Sludge Pump 
 Pulled MLR pump #1 for rebuild 
 Unplugged pumps at pump stations 6 times 
 Removed Screened Mixed Liquor pump #2 for warranty repair 
 Repaired oilers on Mixed Liquor pumps 
 Repaired polymer mixing system for BFP 
 Performed preventive maintenance on the following equipment: 

o Clarifiers #1 and #2; Generator Transfer Switches; Screens on strainer; 
Assist contractor installing blind flange on IBR drain; etc. 



 

   
 

 

 
WATER DIVISION OPERATIONS STAFF REPORT 

 
 
To:   Board of Directors     
From:   Todd Knapp, Operations Manager    
Agenda Item: Operations Report, June 2017 
Item No.:  5c 
Date:   July 18, 2017    

Background 
The Board has requested updates at the Regular Meetings of the Board on the status of 
the District’s Operations. 

Operations Administration 

The fiber line has run into a problem with CenturyLink denying our request to use their 
poles, talking with the contractor, he said our best alternative is to install our own 
pole(s), this option is believed to be cheaper than boring or open trench, given the very 
rocky conditions that exist in River Road, at this particular geographical location and the 
36” depth requirements, contractor has not given the District any firm pricing in time for 
this report. 
 
Valley View reservoir project update, work on the north tank continues, Seismic 
expansion joints are shown being installed, left picture before, right picture shows after 
both installations, just for size comparisons, the hole was 15’ deep. 
 
 

         
   
 
 
 



Operations Report 
July 12, 2017 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

 

 
Field Operations Monthly Report for May 2017 
 
Maintenance work highlights for the month: 
 

 Leak Detection has started  
 Hydrant painting continues 
 Meters replaced, services and leaks (See chart) 
 Water consumption for June 101,310,000 Gallons slightly up from the 10-year 

average. 
(See metered monthly consumption chart)  

 
 
 
 
 



Total Average

January February March April May June July August September October November December Yearly Con Daily Demand

2003 82,674,600 88,370,400 72,820,000 82,357,000 82,416,000 128,520,000 170,652,000 172,726,000 127,198,000 94,416,000 85,037,000 83,285,000 1,270,472,000 3.48

2004 91,933,000 89,441,000 86,755,000 97,665,000 111,392,000 130,863,000 172,883,000 172,499,000 110,696,000 95,973,000 90,079,000 86,823,000 1,337,002,000 3.66

2005 84,976,000 79,415,000 74,996,000 80,616,000 79,088,000 92,885,000 120,871,000 168,248,000 125,172,000 87,512,000 83,230,500 80,773,500 1,157,783,000 3.17

2006 83,697,000 84,098,667 75,580,333 83,028,000 99,436,000 107,501,000 166,449,000 164,957,000 132,989,000 100,180,000 85,350,000 81,587,000 1,264,853,000 3.47

2007 85,179,000 83,766,000 75,622,455 82,508,545 90,129,000 124,696,000 149,207,000 161,512,000 147,980,000 96,159,000 83,445,000 81,921,000 1,262,125,000 3.46

2008 85,466,000 82,200,000 73,405,000 77,221,722 83,162,278 94,885,000 149,422,000 144,592,000 114,830,000 84,307,000 79,094,000 79,319,000 1,147,904,000 3.14

2009 82,042,000 75,196,000 67,364,000 76,238,000 79,968,000 111,127,286 151,804,000 155,069,000 117,099,000 83,457,000 77,782,000 79,107,000 1,156,253,286 3.17

2010 77,735,000 75,975,000 67,986,000 75,943,000 76,903,000 76,720,000 125,996,000 151,590,000 105,880,000 81,052,000 80,389,000 77,515,000 1,073,684,000 2.94

2011 78,266,000 74,983,000 67,462,000 73,285,000 71,613,000 81,189,000 104,328,000 130,684,000 125,733,000 74,646,000 72,657,000 70,555,000 1,025,401,000 2.81

2012 73,041,000 70,104,000 65,501,000 70,380,000 75,148,000 83,256,000 108,236,000 142,023,000 121,981,000 90,545,000 73,672,000 72,454,000 1,046,341,000 2.87

2013 73,277,000 72,051,000 63,866,000 71,906,000 86,085,000 101,278,000 132,837,000 144,354,000 103,403,000 75,217,000 72,624,000 73,180,000 1,070,078,000 2.93

2014 72,052,000 74,566,000 63,886,000 72,171,000 77,889,000 97,978,000 120,411,000 135,271,000 120,008,000 78,257,000 69,534,000 66,200,143 1,048,223,143 2.87

2015 70,840,857 70,318,000 63,972,000 71,515,000 77,173,000 121,185,000 151,728,000 139,696,000 105,238,000 92,781,000 83,966,000 85,368,000 1,133,780,857 3.11

2016 93,522,000 82,637,000 76,044,000 86,443,000 90,989,000 114,745,667 128,722,333 144,599,000 113,212,000 77,196,000 72,766,000 72,839,000 1,153,715,000 3.16

2017 80,205,000 75,867,000 68,040,000 73,822,000 74,515,000 101,310,000

2018

2019

2020

10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year Average 10 Year ADD

78,644,686 75,389,700 67,752,600 74,892,472 79,344,528 98,367,395 130,387,148 143,097,556 114,153,778 81,939,778 75,831,556 75,170,794 3.05

Month
Year

0

20,000,000

40,000,000

60,000,000

80,000,000

100,000,000

120,000,000

140,000,000

160,000,000

180,000,000

Ja
n
u
ar
y

Fe
b
ru
ar
y

M
ar
ch

A
p
ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n
e

Ju
ly

A
u
gu
st

Se
p
te
m
b
er

O
ct
o
b
er

N
o
ve
m
b
er

D
ec
em

b
er

OLWSD'S Metered Monthly Consumption 2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017



 Fiscal Year 

2016 - 2017 Month

Meters 

Replaced

New 

Services

Iron Services 

Renewed

Plastic Services 

Renewed

Service Leaks 

Repaired

Main Leaks 

Repaired

2017 June 32 3

2017 May 18 7 2 2 2 1

2017 Apr 39 7 1 4 2 1

2017 Mar 168 1 1

2017 Feb 25 5

2017 Jan 7 4 8

2016 Dec 10 3 1 1 4

2016 Nov 49 8 2 1

2016 Oct 57 5 1 1

2016 Sep 105 1 1 2

2016 Aug 192 3 1 3

2016 July 159 2 3 1

861 46 4 11 17 17Yearly Total

321839
168

257104957105

192
159

JuneMayAprMarFebJanDecNovOctSepAugJuly M
ET

ER
S 

R
EP

LA
C

ED

MONTH

REPLACED METER CHART 2016 - 2017 

Meters Replaced

77

1

5
4

3

8

5

1

3
2 2

11
2

4

1
2

11

3
22

11
2

33

111

8

4

11

0

2

4

6

8

10

JuneMayAprMarFebJanDecNovOctSepAugJuly

A
C

TI
V

IT
Y

MONTH

SERVICE and MAIN ACTIVITY 2016 - 2017

New Services Iron Services Renewed Plastic Services Renewed Service Leaks Repaired Main Leaks Repaired



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

    
To:   Board of Directors 
From:   Jason Rice, Interim General Manager  
Agenda Item:   Technical Services Report  
Item No.:    5d 
Date:   July 18, 2017 

 
    
Below is an update of various efforts for the Technical Services Program.   
 
Capital Improvement Program:  
 
Vactor Unit 
 

Staff is making steps though the State of Oregon’s pre-approved vendor list to acquire a 
vactor for the use of all utilities. Staff has been waiting for this piece of equipment for 
quite some time and are excited to be able to do their jobs more efficiently and safely. 

 
Water Master Plan 
 

Staff is preparing a Request for Proposals to perform Water Master Planning services for 
the District. This plan will include at least: 

 
 An updated list of Capital Project needs for the next 10 years 
 Rate Study 
 System Development Charge (SDC) Study 

 
OLWSD Master On-call Contract 
 

The Sanitary District had an active contract that expires December 31, 2017. Since this 
contract is about to expire, Staff is preparing an RFP for Master On-call Services that 
can be released to the public on or around October 1, 2017. 
 

Janitorial and Landscaping Services Contract 
 

The Sanitary District had an active contract that expires October 31, 2017. Since this 
contract is about to expire, Staff is preparing to seek out savings and security through a 
newly updated contract. 

 
 
 
 



 

Other Projects: 
 
Water Building Expansion 
 
 Technical Services Expansion (west side): Nearing Engineering Completion  
 

Field Services Expansion (east side): Floor Plan has been approved by Staff and is 
being sent to Engineering. 

 
Rules and Regulations Update 
 

This document has now been reviewed by Staff and will be sent to Legal Counsel for 
final review and formatting. Staff’s goal is to have this document ready for Board 
Approval (via Ordinance) at the September and October Board Meetings. 

 
Design and Construction Standards Update 
 
 Staff is in the process of combining the Sanitary, Watershed Protection and Water 

Design and Construction Standards. This process is taking some time to work through 
the differences in how Water and Sanitary Staff managed situations. Staff’s goal is to 
have this document ready for Board Approval at the August Board Meeting. 

 
Outreach and Education 
	
Summer months bring coordination and planning tasks for the OLWS Outreach and Education 
programs. 
 
As the fiscal year ended, final reports and invoicing wrapped up partnerships from last year, and 
with the passage of the FY 2017-2018 Budget, staff time has focused on updating contracts with 
our partners.  
 
Tours drop off until the fall, although we will host the “Posey Pickers Garden Club” this August, 
and there will likely be a tour scheduled with Willamette View residents, who recently requested 
a visit. 
 
OLWS staff represented the district’s drinking water, stormwater, and sewer services at the first 
annual Oak Lodge Trolley Trail Festival on Saturday, July 15th.  The event was well publicized 
and was the first of its kind in the District. 
 
As the summer progresses, OLWS staff will formalize programming for the coming year with 
outreach partners including: Clackamas River Water Providers, North Clackamas Urban 
Watershed Council, Dig In (formerly SOLVE), Schoolyard Farms, Ecology in Classrooms and 
the Outdoors (ECO), Portland Audubon/Columbia Land Trust, and the Clackamas County 
Sheriff.  
 
OLWS’ partnership strategy allows the District to meet permit requirements effectively within a 
streamlined program budget. By working with many partners, OLWS broadens community 
awareness of the importance of clean water, and our role in the process of providing drinking 
water to customers. 
 
 



 

Permitting 
 

This 
Month 

Last 
Month 

Year‐to‐
Date 

This 
Month 
Last Year 

Last Year‐
to‐Date 

Building Permits Review  12  17  102   ‐    ‐  

Fees Received  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00   ‐    ‐  

Erosion Control Permits  1  3  28  6  43 

Fees Received  $513.15  $364.76  $12,582.38  $1,725.00  $10,925.00 

P/E Cost  $377.10  $613.92  $7,906.20   ‐   ‐ 

Ops Cost  $496.23  $590.75  $7,209.99   ‐   ‐ 

SS Connections (New EDUs)  6  4  42  1  35 

SDC Fees Received  $30,990.00  $20,660.00  $222,095.00  $5,165.00  $112,278.81

SS Permits   8  7  65  2  61 

Fees Received  $3,508.50  $2,136.99  $16,669.01  $0.00  $1,196.00 

P/E Cost  $1,317.78  $1,267.87  $18,635.00   ‐   ‐ 

SS Inspections   8  14  153  20  133 

Residential  5  14  112   ‐    ‐  

Commercial  1  0  11   ‐    ‐  

Main  2  0  10   ‐    ‐  

Staff Cost  $291.13  $294.90  $586.03  $236.00  $7,180.00 

Pre‐applications  1  1  22  ‐  ‐ 

Fees Received  $0.00  $0.00  $0.00  ‐  ‐ 

Development Review  0  0  20   ‐    ‐  

Review Fees 
Recv'd  $2,927.75  $0.00  $35,258.12   ‐    ‐  

Ops Cost  $189.99  $0.00  $1,870.56   ‐    ‐  

P/E Cost  $1,125.15  $3,664.24  $46,886.49   ‐    ‐  

Permit Fees Outstanding  23,206.92 

Note: Service Request hourly information now migrated to Lucity and out of EDEN.  It is anticipated to 
be included next FY. 

Note: Figures are reported on a fiscal year 
basis. 

" ‐ " indicates unavailable or not applicable 
data 

 
Attachments 
 

1. “Development Review Status” tracker 



Project Status Address Type of Development Notes Last Updated

Complete 15415 SE River Rd. 3-parcel Partition (2 new homes)
Project complete.  Inspections complete.  Erosion Control ongoing. Awaiting 

asbuilts.  Unknown timeline.
7/7/17

Under Construction
3127 SE Concord Rd. (Concord Oaks, 

formerly Concord Vineyards II)
6-acre development (32 residential lots.)

Development Inspections complete. Ongoing building permits / sanitary 

sewer connections (SFD).  Unknown timeline.
7/7/17

Under Construction 17624 SE Rose St. 2-parcel Partition
Erosion Control inspections ongoing.  Awaiting sanitary sewer permits for 

front SFD. OLWSD permits expired. Unknown timeline.
7/7/17

Under Construction 14400 SE Lee Ave.
Z0071-16 Duplex on existing lot. (SFR previously 

demolished)

Erosion Control inspections ongoing.  Sanitary Sewer installed.  Unknown 

Timeline
7/7/17

Under Construction 2009 SE Courtney Ave.

3-parcel Partition (1 new home & 1 new duplex.  

Existing home is on the Historical Register as a 

duplex.)

Erosion Control inspections ongoing.  Sanitary Sewer installed. Sewer 

connections pending.  Unknown timeline.
7/7/17

Under Construction 15448 SE East Ave. (Zetterberg Estates) 18-Unit Multi-Family Sanitary sewer Inspections complete.  Erosion Control inspetions ongoing. 7/7/17

Under Construction 2721 SE Swain Ave. 2-parcel Partition (2 new homes)
SS Inspections complete.  Erosion Control inspetions continuing.  Unknown 

timeline.
7/7/17

Under Construction 5210 SE Roethe Rd. 6-lot Subdivision (5 new homes)
Public infrastructure installed and approved.  In 11-month warranty period.  

SFDs under construction. Warranty period ends July 2017. 
7/7/17

Under Construction 14620 SE McLoughlin Blvd. (Fred Meyer)
Demo bottle return facility and construct pick-up 

delivery area.
Construction plans approved.  Erosion control inspections ongoing. 7/7/17

Under Construction Lot east of 18390 SE Woodcock Ave. 2-parcel partition Plans approved. Inspections ongoing (EPSC)  SS inspections complete.  7/7/17

Under Construction 14911 SE McLoughlin Lew's Dairy Freeze Remodel to MOD Pizza
Engineering plans approved.  Building permit approved.  Under construction.  

Erosion control ongoing. 
7/7/17

Under Construction 2312 SE Risley Ave 3-lot partition Engineering plans approved.  Building permits approved. Expire March 2018. 7/7/17

Under Construction 4900 SE Meldrum 2-lot partition ZPAC0181-16
Public infrastructure installed and approved.  In 11-month warranty period.  

SFDs under construction. Warranty period ends March 20183. 
7/7/17

Approved for Construction 17722 SE Rose St., 17832 SE Rose St.
Two 2-parcel partitions (2 new homes, 2 

replacement homes)

Awaiting utility construction plans (sanitary sewer connection / erosion 

control). OLWSD permits expire July 2017. 
7/7/17

Approved for Construction 19416 SE River Rd.
2-parcel partition, 2 new duplexes, Existing SFR to 

be demolished

Plans approved.  Sanitary sewer inspections pending. Erosion control 

inspections ongoing.  Erosion control expires June 2018
7/7/17

Approved for Construction 14824 SE Laurie Ave. 14830 SE Laurie Ave. 2-parcel Partition, 14830 SE Laurie Ave. Awaiting building permit submittal. OLWSD permits expire May 2017 7/7/17

Approved for Construction 15026 SE Linden Ln. 3-parcel Partition Engineering plans approved. Awaiting building permit.  Expires July 2017 7/7/17

Plan Review 4150 SE ROETHE RD Commercial Structures Relocation
Land Use Decision received.  Awaiting engineering plans.  County Land Use 

Expiration date. 
7/7/17

Plan Review 14119 SE Mcloughlin Blvd

Z0260-16  Nonconforming Use - 

Alteration/Verification.  Medical Marijuana 

Production

Design Review Plans Submitted.  OLSD Submitted Comments.  Pre-

treatment analysis. Awaiting construction plans.  County Land Use 

Expiration date. 

7/7/17

Plan Review 13409 SE McLoughlin Blvd 3 New Slips Mobile Home Park
Z0430-14.  Land use approved.  Awaiting engineering planset.  County land 

use expiration date. 
7/7/17

Plan Review 13012 SE Oatfield Proposed subdivision; 9 potential lots. 
Engineering planset (2nd review) submitted.  Revised set submitted and 

under review.
7/7/17

Plan Review 18122 SE McLoughlin Blvd
 Z0482-16-D  Commercial Design Review: Fuel 

Island
Engineering plans (1st review) complete.  Awaiting revised plans. #REF!



Project Status Address Type of Development Notes Last Updated

Plan Review 5790 SE McNary Rd. 2-parcel Partition.  Z0312-15-M; Godfrey Partition
Final engineering approval.  Sewer permits issued and installed. Erosion 

Control inspections ongoing.  Expires December 2017
7/7/17

Plan Review 3816 SE Hill Rd Z0428-16 8-lot subdivision
Received Engineering Plans (2nd review) comments sent.  Awaiting 3rd plan 

submittal. 
7/7/17

Plan Review 14335 SE WAGNER LN
Carport and wall.  Floodplain.  Will. River 

Greenway

Land Use Decision received.   Awaiting engineering plans.  Clackamas County 

Land Use timeline. 
7/7/17

Plan Review 6460 Glen Echo Avenue
Z0461-16_Gladstone_Glen_Echo.  (OLSD Service 

area  / out of OLSD Boundary).

Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application. Expires Dec. 

2017.
7/7/17

Plan Review 4281 SE Manewell Lane A four-lot  SFR minor subdivision.  
Land use comments sent. Awiating engineering plans.  County expiration 

timeline.  
7/7/17

Plan Review 17908 and 17900 SE Addie Street. Z0200-17-D_BOARDMAN_WETLAND 
Land use comments sent.  Awaiting engineering plans.  County timeline for 

expiration.
7/7/17

plan review 5215 SE Roethe Rd
2-parcel partition / 2-year extension Z0014-17.  

previous Z0555-12-M
Land use comments sent.  Awaiting engineering plans.  Land Use timeline. 7/7/17

Plan Review 19120 McLoughlin Blvd.
Z0048-17-D Design Review Tebos Restaurant 

Occupancy Change: Auto Sales

Land use comments sent.  Awaiting building permit application.   Gladstone 

PC Decision approval.  Out of OLWSD boundary; in service area. County 

expiration timeline.

7/7/17

Plan Review SE Manewal at SE Towery LN
Z0156-17_Manewal_South_Manewal_South. 2-lot 

partition.
Land Use / Partition under review. 7/7/17

Plan Review SE Manewal at SE Towery LN Z0157-17_Manewal_South Land Use / Partition under review. 7/7/17

Plan Review SE Courtney at SE Rupert Z0061-17-D 10-unit apartment
Land Use Comments sent.  Awaiting  engineering plans.  County Land Use 

Timeline.
7/7/17

Plan Review 15510 SE Wallace Street Z0593-16 13 lot subdivision
Land Use Comments sent.  Awaiting  engineering plans.   County Land Use 

Timeline.
7/7/17

Plan Review 13715 SE River Road Zone Change  Rose Villa Zone Change  Z0066-17 7/7/17

Pre-Application 4207 SE Hull Ave 3-5 lot subdivision
Pre-app Comment sent to County.  Awaiting land use application. County 

pre-app timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 3303 SE Concord Road two-parcel partition
Pre-app Comment sent to County.  Awaiting land use application. Expires 

June 2017
7/7/17

Pre-Application
18121 SE River Rd. (Jennings Lodge 

Estates)

62-lot Subdivision  (Zone Change R-10 to R-8.5 not 

approved by CC. (Applicant has filed an appeal 

with the Land Use Board of Appeals)

Received Engineering Plans (2nd review) comments sent.  Awaiting 3rd plan 

submittal. 
7/7/17

Pre-Application 13715 SE River Road
ZPAC0136-16_Rose_Villa Redevelopment Phase II Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application.  County 

expiration timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 3905 SE WILLAMETTE DR ZPAC0134-16_Willamette_Dr_Partition
Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application.  County 

expiration timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 3901 SE NAEF RD
ZPAC0124-16   A Partition application with two 

existing light industrial buildings.

Pre-application comments sent.  Awaiting land use / subdivision application. 

Expires Sept. 2017.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 18107 SE Addie Street. ZPAC0167-16    4-plex 
Pre-application comments sent.  Awaiting land use / subdivision application. 

Expires Dec. 2017
7/7/17

Pre-Application 12811 SE Oatfield Road 4-plex Multi Family. 
Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application.  County 

expiration timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 14501 SE Laurie Ave Z0050-17 2-lot partition
Land use comments sent.  Awaiting engineering plans.   County expiration 

timeline.
7/7/17



Project Status Address Type of Development Notes Last Updated

Pre-Application Willamette View
Riverview Dining Facility Replacement / 

Expansion; ZPAC0003-17

Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application.  County 

expiration timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application 2818 SE Park Avenue Commercial with underground parking
Pre-app comments submitted.  Awaiting Land Use Application.  County 

expiration timeline.
7/7/17

Pre-Application  3260 SE Oak Grove Blvd  130000+ mini storage facility Land use comments sent.  Awaiting engineering plans. 7/7/17
Pre-Application 15007 SE McLoughlin Blvd LA Fitness TI ZPAC0031-17.Awaiting land use/design review application. 7/7/17
Pre-Application 16005 SE River Forest Pl two-parcel partiion ZPAC0027-17.Awaiting land use application. 7/7/17
Pre-Application 18107 SE Blanton 3-lot partition ZPAC0063-17  Awaiting land use application. 7/7/17
Pre-Application 18107 SE Addie Street Subdivision:  5 units / 6 lots ZPAC0096-17 to build 5 units and partition 6 lots at 7/7/17



 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
    
Agenda Item:   Public Comment Period 
Item No.:    6    
Presenters:   N/A        
 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board on any relevant topic.  The Board 
may elect to limit the total time available for public comment or for any single speaker 
depending on meeting length. 
 



 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

    
Agenda Item:   Business from the Board 
Item No.:    7 
Presenters:   Board Members        

 
 
Background: 
 
The Board of Directors appoints District representatives from time to time to serve 
as liaisons or representatives of the District to committees or community groups.  
 
Directors assigned specific roles as representatives of the District are placed on the 
agenda to report to the Board on the activities, issues, and policy matters related to 
their assignment. 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

    
Agenda Item:   Executive Session 
Item No.:    8  
Presenters:   Board Members        
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
 
Convene Executive Session under ORS 192.660(2)(i) to consider the employment 
of a public officer, employee, staff member or individual agent. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

    
Agenda Item:   Adjourn Executive Session 
Item No.:    9 
Presenters:   Board Members        

 
Background: 
 
Adjourn Executive session and make any necessary motions as a result of 
Executive Session discussions. 

 
 
 


	0 Agenda
	2 Call For Public Testimony
	3 Consumption Based Billing_Staff Report
	3a Consumption Based Billing_Policy
	3b Resolution 2017-12 Consumption Based Billing
	3bi Consumption Based Billing_Policy
	4 Consent Agenda
	4a Finance Report Cover
	4ai Financial Reports
	4b 20170620 OLWS BOD Minutes
	5a Finance Staff Report
	5b Sanitary Operations Staff Report
	5c Water Operations Staff Report
	5ci Valley View Readings Rev3
	5cii Board Report Stats 2017
	5d Technical Services Staff Report
	5di_Development Tracker
	6 Public Comment
	7 Business from the Board
	8 Executive Session
	9 Adjourn Executive Session

